
1 | P a g e  

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

OF THE CITY  

COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

CITY OF EAST GRAND FORKS 

TUESDAY, MAY 13, 2014 - 5:30 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

The Work Session of the East Grand Forks City Council for May 13, 2014 was called to order by 

Council President Craig Buckalew at 5:30 P.M. 

 

CALL OF ROLL:   

 

On a Call of Roll the following members of the East Grand Forks City Council were present: 

Mayor Lynn Stauss, Council President Craig Buckalew, Council Vice President Greg Leigh, 

Council Members Clarence Vetter, Dale Helms, Henry Tweten, Mark Olstad, and Chad Grassel. 

 

Dave Aker, Parks & Recreation Superintendent; Karla Anderson, Finance Director;  Greg 

Boppre, City Engineer; Dan Boyce, Water & Light Manager; Mark Dragich, Recreation 

Supervisor; Nancy Ellis, City Planner; Ron Galstad, City Attorney; Earl Haugen, MPO 

Executive Director; Mike Hedlund, Police Chief; Gary Larson, Fire Chief; David Murphy, City 

Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer; Megan Nelson, Executive Assistant; and Jason Stordahl, Public 

Works Director. 

 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 

 

The Council President Determined a Quorum was present 

 

1. Kennedy Bridge Study Update – Greg Boppre 

 

Mr. Boppre introduced Mr. Roger Hille and Mr. Joe McKinnon from the Minnesota Department 

of Transportation.  He stated that Mr. Hille would be giving the presentation updating the council 

on the Kennedy Bridge project.  He added how he and Mr. Bail had reviewed the preliminary 

reports and agreed with the findings.  Mr. Hille began the presentation by introducing himself 

and Mr. McKinnon and then began discussing the study that was completed, the structural needs 

that need to be addressed, and the addition of sidewalks and bike paths.  Council Vice-President 

Leigh stated that the East Grand Forks City Council, the Grand Forks City Council, and the 

Metropolitan Planning Organization were all in favor of a cantilevered path on the outside of the 

bridge to keep pedestrians safe from traffic.  Mr. Hille stated there were too many issues to 

include the cantilevered paths with the project.  The presentation and discussion continued on 

keeping the lanes at 12 feet, keeping the center median, and the process of fixing the bridge.  

Council President Buckalew asked who and when the decision will be made on if the project will 

be a reconstruction or rehab project.  Mr. Hille stated that is the next phase of this project which 

will be done in the next year or two.  He added they would like to start work on the bridge in 

2016 so there is a lot to do in a short amount of time.  Mr. Hille ended by telling the council this 

will be a challenging project. 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

2. Summer Sprinkle Rate – Bonnie Abel 

 

Ms. Abel informed the council that in 2004 the Water and Light Commission passed a resolution 

that removed the water rate so it was only the sewage rate that was discounted when the sprinkle 

rate is in effect.  She explained that customers had been asking about what months the sprinkle 

rate was used and how Water and Light Commission would like the City Council to make 

decisions with the sprinkle rate because the council sets the sewage rate.  She reviewed the time 

frame when the sprinkle rate is in effect for both the north and south end.  She explained how 

after reviewing the numbers she would recommend the council make the decision to change the 

time frame for the south end to be from the May 4
th

 reading to the September 5
th

 reading to the 

June 5
th

 reading until the October 5
th

 reading.  Ms. Abel informed the council of similar practices 

of area communities.  Discussion followed about how the DNR does not allow discounts on 

water rates in the state of Minnesota to help cut down on water usage.  Council member Tweten 

mentioned how the cities of Luverne and Worthington have ran out of water and are asking the 

state for help.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated the council should continue with the current 

rates, review this at a future work session, and change the dates as recommended to the south 

end.   

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action.   

 

3. Praxis Study – Nancy Ellis 

 

Ms. Ellis reminded the council they already saw this proposal this past February.  She explained 

the Blue Ribbon Study Grand Forks had completed which looked at housing needs and how to 

attract new businesses to the community.  She also explained the process used to complete the 

study and how this meets all of the needs of the strategic plan that was adopted early in the year 

by the council.  Ms. Ellis told the council the original price for this study was $50,000 but now it 

is lower with City staff helping with the process.  Council member Tweten stated that different 

groups have come in for years trying to do this and it never works out.  Council member Helms 

asked what we would be paying them for if City Staff is doing the work.  Ms. Ellis stated that 

staff would help but they would still be completing many things and finalizing the report.  

Council member Tweten asked how much it will cost with staff helping.  Ms. Ellis said it would 

be $37,000.  Council Vice-President Leigh said this is not a good time for this because of all of 

the other issues that need to be addressed.  He asked if this could come back at a different time.   

 

Council President Buckalew asked if this study had been completed before.  Ms. Ellis stated she 

thought there had been one completed for the Air Force Base.  Mr. Murphy informed the council 

that it is his opinion this is a good time to have this study done and to have an outside opinion on 

how the City can be doing things better.  Council President Buckalew asked if this was a part of 

the budget.  Mr. Murphy said no.  Ms. Ellis stated that this strategic goal setting session took 

place after the budget was set.  Council member Olstad asked if a representative from company 

could come in and speak to the council at the next work session.  Discussion followed on if past 

reports or studies like this were conducted and how the council would like a representative to 

come to speak at a work session in August.      

 

4. City Lot Next to Minnesota Heights – David Murphy 

 

Mr. Murphy said there was some confusion with the City owned lot by the Minnesota Heights 



3 | P a g e  

 

complex and if it was included with the purchase of the property the apartment building.  

Council Vice-President Leigh stated there is no confusion and how the City offered to sell the lot 

but nothing came of it.  Mr. Murphy asked if the council would still be interested in selling the 

property and to start the discussion on a potential purchase.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated 

that is what should happen and if a party is interested to approach the City with a purchase price.  

Mr. Lindquist reminded the council how they had sold 50 foot lot split into 25 foot lots to the 

neighboring landowners for $4000 because nothing really could be done with that small of a lot.  

Discussion followed about the lot size and if a house could be built on this lot.  Council member 

Helms asked if the neighboring property owner should have an option to purchase this lot.  More 

discussion followed about how the developer was told before about this lot and how the property 

owner next to the lot should also have an opportunity to purchase the lot.  Council President 

Buckalew said that this was now going to be taken care of by Mr. Murphy.     

 

5. Request to Purchase a Pool Heater – Dave Murphy/Dave Aker 

 

Mr. Murphy explained there were two companies the City was able to obtain quotes which 

consisted of their recommendation of a heater that would meet the needs of the current pool and 

a possible future upgrade.  He stated that this is not an exact apples to apples comparison because 

the largest heater Custom Pools sells is a 1.6 million BTU.  He added how the City pool is larger 

than most outdoor municipal pools.  He stated that Horizon recommends a 2 million BTU heater.  

Council Vice-President Leigh asked what is needed at the pool and which heater will solve the 

problem.  Mr. Murphy stated he would recommend the pool heater from Horizon.  He added that 

he knows it is more expensive but it will heat the pool faster, is more user friendly, and calibrates 

itself.  Council President Buckalew asked if it would be around $40,000.  Mr. Murphy stated that 

price included the installation of the pump which can be delivered on site.  He added that he 

won’t be in place for the pool opening but will be in shortly after.  

 

This item will be referred to a City Council Meeting for action.     

 

6. Liquor License Restrictions & New Business – Megan Nelson 

 

Ms. Nelson explained how she had been contacted by a business in South Dakota who was 

interested in opening up a business in East Grand Forks which would offer art classes and art 

events.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated that he is in favor of business coming to town but 

was against changing anything because if the council allowed this malt liquor license he didn’t 

know how the council would be able to regulate this license.  Council member Grassel asked 

where this business was going to be located.  Ms. Nelson stated so told them to contact Ms. Ellis 

so they know where they could locate.  Ms. Ellis said they had not contacted her at this point.  

Ms. Nelson informed the council how it was suggested if allowed by council, they might be 

eligible for a malt liquor license.  She added that when this was mentioned they asked to see if 

the council would allow this so she brought it forward.  Council member Helms asked if they 

would qualify for a wine license.  Ms. Nelson said no and explained how they would first have to 

qualify as a restaurant and meet the guidelines as a medium or large food establishment by the 

Department of Health.  Discussion followed about if an age requirement was necessary and how 

this business could still open without a liquor license if they were interested and without the 

council amending any of the liquor license ordinances.     

 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

7. Discussion of Payment in Question – Clarence Vetter 

 

Council member Vetter stated that he was concerned when the expenses came through for the ice 

show.  He stated the expenses and revenue was pulled for the council to review.  He explained 

the ice show made approximately $6250 in ticket sales and the expenses were $6581.26 which 

meant the ice show lost approximately $300.  He added that if anything should happen the City 

should be asking the figure skating club to donate $300 to the City so the City can break even on 

the ice show.  He stated how the clubs are there to support the City programs and how the City is 

not suppose to be supporting the clubs.  He asked that the check made out to the figure skating 

club be voided.  Council Vice-President Leigh asked what the check was for.  Council member 

Vetter stated it was 25% of the revenue.  Council Vice-President Leigh stated he agreed with 

Council member Vetter.  He added the City shouldn’t show a loss and paying out part of the 

revenue.  He continued by saying that if there is a profit they could decide to donate to a club 

because he is in favor of helping the clubs but not at the expense of the taxpayers.   

 

Mr. Aker stated how in the past the figure skating club had paid some of the bills for things like 

the spot light rental, collected 25% of the revenue, and spent more than they took in.  Council 

Vice-President Leigh stated how the City is taking a loss but if there was a profit the council 

should make the decision to donate a portion to the club.  Discussion followed about who 

volunteers at this event, how the City paid all of the bills for this event, and how the clubs in 

town run their own competitions but this ice show was a City event.  Council member Grassel 

asked why the process changed on paying the bills and if this is a City event then the City should 

have been paying the bills the entire time.  Mr. Murphy explained how there were meetings held 

in regards to how the ice show was going to be conducted this year.  Council President Buckalew 

asked if this arrangement needs to be looked into.  Mr. Murphy stated how the bills were handled 

this time went well.   

 

8. Verbal Update from City Administrator  – David Murphy  

 

Mr. Murphy stated how he hasn’t had enough time to work on the girls locker room expansion at 

the Civic Center.  He added that EAPC has met with Mr. Larson to see what would be needed for 

an interior work space and how he will be working on this again soon.  He also said how the City 

Council and EDHA Board met in a special meeting where they finalized the EDHA Director’s 

job evaluation and documents will be brought forward at next week’s council meeting.  

 

ADJOURN: 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COUNCIL MEMBER LEIGH, SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

MEMBER TWETEN, TO ADJOURN THE MAY 13, 2014 COUNCIL MEETING OF 

THE EAST GRAND FORKS, MINNESOTA CITY COUNCIL AT 6:48 P.M. 

 

Voting Aye: Olstad, Leigh, Grassel, Vetter, Helms, Buckalew, and Tweten. 

Voting Nay: None. 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

David Murphy, City Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer 

 


